
 
 

*All times are approximate 
** Draft results of the Community Development Needs Assessment Survey are 

available online at slocounty.gov/CommunityDevelopment. 
 
 

HOMELESS SERVICES OVERSIGHT COUNCIL (HSOC) 
Meeting Agenda 

November 20, 2024, 1pm  

Committee members must participate in person (except for just cause reasons or 
personal emergency reasons approved by the HSOC): 

Room 101, County of San Luis Obispo Department of Social Services, 
3433 South Higuera St, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

The public may participate in person or by Zoom video call: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85437874713?pwd=nWbUxacvbJ2vYgiCf3EWJIQE1uNgXf.1 
 

Or dial in: 
+16694449171 

 Meeting ID: 854 3787 4713 
Passcode: 112856 

 
 

1. Call to Order and Introductions (2 minutes*) 

2. Public Comment (6 minutes*) 

3. Consent: Approval of Minutes (1 minute*) 

4. Action/Information/Discussion 

4.1. HSOC Administration 

4.1.1. Action Item:  Vote to Recommend Nine Persons for Appointment to 
Vacant or Expiring Seats on the Homeless Services Oversight 
Council (10 minutes*) 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slocounty.ca.gov%2Fdepartments%2Fsocial-services%2Fhomeless-services-division%2Fcommunity-development&data=05%7C02%7Clweir%40co.slo.ca.us%7C52f1178db06e426c0eea08dd059d597b%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C638672895578283884%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=70WVf5MMpIKiH7hJemhFKxF22M1TNLmQZehdMGZXs3o%3D&reserved=0
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85437874713?pwd=nWbUxacvbJ2vYgiCf3EWJIQE1uNgXf.1


 
 

*All times are approximate 
** Draft results of the Community Development Needs Assessment Survey are 

available online at slocounty.gov/CommunityDevelopment. 
 
 

4.1.1.1. Committee Questions 

4.1.1.2. Public Comment 

4.1.1.3. Committee Discussion and Vote 

4.2. Implementing Five-Year Plan Line of Effort 1 - Create Affordable and 
Appropriately Designed Housing Opportunities and Shelter Options for 
Underserved Populations 

4.2.1. Action Item: Vote to recommend amending the Permanent Local 
Housing Allocation for both the County of San Luis Obispo and City 
of Pismo Beach CY2023 allocations as required by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (8 minutes*) 

4.2.1.1. Committee Questions 

4.2.1.2. Public Comment 

4.2.1.3. Committee Discussion and Vote 

4.2.2. Information Item: Findings from the 2025 Community Development 
Needs Assessment (15 minutes*) ** 

4.2.2.1. Committee Questions 

4.2.2.2. Public Comment 

4.2.2.3. Committee Discussion 

4.2.3. Information Item:  Presentation from the Affordable Housing Task 
Force (25 minutes*) 

4.2.3.1. Committee Questions 

4.2.3.2. Public Comment 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slocounty.ca.gov%2Fdepartments%2Fsocial-services%2Fhomeless-services-division%2Fcommunity-development&data=05%7C02%7Clweir%40co.slo.ca.us%7C52f1178db06e426c0eea08dd059d597b%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C638672895578283884%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=70WVf5MMpIKiH7hJemhFKxF22M1TNLmQZehdMGZXs3o%3D&reserved=0


 
 

*All times are approximate 
** Draft results of the Community Development Needs Assessment Survey are 

available online at slocounty.gov/CommunityDevelopment. 
 
 

4.2.3.3. Committee Discussion 

4.3. Implementing Five-Year Plan Line of Effort 2: Reduce or Eliminate Barriers 
to Housing Stability 

4.3.1. Information Item:  Presentation by the County Office of Education’s 
Homeless and Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program 
Regarding the Education Provisions of the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act (20 minutes*) 

4.3.1.1. Committee Questions 

4.3.1.2. Public Comment 

4.3.1.3. Committee Discussion 

4.3.2. Information Item:  Winter Warming Center Season (12 minutes*) 

4.3.2.1. Committee Questions 

4.3.2.2. Public Comment 

4.3.2.3. Committee Discussion 

4.4. Discussion Item: Committee Updates (12 minutes*) 

4.4.1.1. Committee Questions 

4.4.1.2. Public Comment 

4.4.1.3. Committee Discussion 

4.5. Discussion Item: Updates from County Staff (5 minutes*) 

4.5.1.1. Committee Questions 

4.5.1.2. Public Comment 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slocounty.ca.gov%2Fdepartments%2Fsocial-services%2Fhomeless-services-division%2Fcommunity-development&data=05%7C02%7Clweir%40co.slo.ca.us%7C52f1178db06e426c0eea08dd059d597b%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C638672895578283884%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=70WVf5MMpIKiH7hJemhFKxF22M1TNLmQZehdMGZXs3o%3D&reserved=0


 
 

*All times are approximate 
** Draft results of the Community Development Needs Assessment Survey are 

available online at slocounty.gov/CommunityDevelopment. 
 
 

4.5.1.3. Committee Discussion 

5. Future Discussion/Report Items (2 minutes*) 

6. Updates and Requests for Information (2 minutes*) 

7. Next Regular Meeting: January 15, 2025 

8. Adjournment 

 

The full agenda packet for this meeting is available on the SLO County HSOC web 
page: 

https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Social-Services/Homeless-
Services/Homeless-Services-Oversight-Council-(HSOC).aspx 

 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.slocounty.ca.gov%2Fdepartments%2Fsocial-services%2Fhomeless-services-division%2Fcommunity-development&data=05%7C02%7Clweir%40co.slo.ca.us%7C52f1178db06e426c0eea08dd059d597b%7C84c3c7747fdf40e2a59027b2e70f8126%7C0%7C0%7C638672895578283884%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=70WVf5MMpIKiH7hJemhFKxF22M1TNLmQZehdMGZXs3o%3D&reserved=0
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Social-Services/Homeless-Services/Homeless-Services-Oversight-Council-(HSOC).aspx
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Social-Services/Homeless-Services/Homeless-Services-Oversight-Council-(HSOC).aspx


HOMELESS SERVICES OVERSIGHT COUNCIL (HSOC) 
MEETING MINUTES 

 

Date 
September 18, 2024 

Time 
1:04pm- 2:57pm 

Location 
Room 101, Department of Social Services, 3433 S Higuera, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
 
Some members (those approved with just cause/ emergency reasons) and the public were 
able to participate via Zoom video call. 

Members Present 
Abby Lassen (Just Cause-Zoom) 
Ariana Jimenez (alternate for Rochelle Sonza) 
Aurora William 
Brenda Mack (Just Cause-Zoom) 
Christy Nichols  
Daniela Garcia (alternate for Jessica Thomas) 
Daphne Boatright (alternate for Allison Brandum) 
Devin Drake 
Jack Lahey  
Janna Nichols  
Jeff Smith 
Jim Dantona 
Kathy McClenathen  
Kristen Barneich  
Luke Dunn 
Marcia Guthrie 
Margaret Shepard-Moore (Just Cause-Zoom) 
Marie Bolin 
Mark Lamore 
Michelle Pedigo (Just Cause-Zoom) 
Michelle Shoresman 
Rick Gulino (Just Cause-Zoom) 
Rick Scott 
Star Graber 
Susan Funk 
Susan Lamont 



Wendy Blacker 
Wendy Lewis 
Zara Landrum 
 
Members Absent 
Allison Brandum 
Amelia Grover 
Clint Weirick 
Dawn Ortiz-Legg 
Jessica Thomas 
Rochelle Sonza 
Steve Gregory 
William Crewe 
 
Staff & Guests 
Daisy Wiberg 
Erica Jaramillo 
George Solis 
Jeff Al-Mashat 
Kari Howell 
Kate Bourne 
Laurel Weir 
Lawren Ramos 
Linda Belch 
Merlie Livermore 
Nancy Crawford 
Nicole Bennett 
Russ Francis 
Suzie Freeman 
 
1. Call to Order and Introductions 

  Chairperson Michelle Shoresman called the meeting to order at 1:04 pm. Introductions 
were made by those new to the meeting. 

 
2. Public Comments 

Aurora William shared that she and Abby Lassen Lassen have been working together 
and have updated the San Luis Obispo County Community Resource Brochure.  This 
brochure contains contact information and an overview of services from community 
agencies who serve unhoused persons. Copies can be ordered from Burdine printing at 
(805) 489-4910. 



Wendy Lewis shared that ECHO (El Camino Homeless Organization) is having a 
fundraiser and an awareness walk this Saturday in Atascadero at 10:30am. More 
information is available at echoshelter.org. 
Zara Landrum expressed her appreciation to Jack Lahey, Wendy Blacker, Aurora William 
and Linda Belch for participating in the Morro Bay town hall meeting held last Sunday. 
 

3.  Consent: Approval of Minutes 
Susan Funk moved the motion for minutes to be approved, seconded by Janna Nichols. 
Minutes passed via voice vote. 

 
4. Action/Information/Discussion 

4.1. HSOC Administration 
4.1.1. Information Item: HSOC Membership Call for Applications to Fill Vacant and Expiring 
Seats   
 
Laurel Weir shared the following seats are expiring in January 2025: County Government 
Service Providers, Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons, Advocates, Public Safety 
Organizations, Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans, Victim Service Providers, 
Behavioral Health Agencies, and Businesses. There are two vacant seats, namely Faith-
Based Organizations and the Youth Board. Application forms are available at the County 
website.  October 7 is the deadline for applications. 
 

 4.2. Implementing Five-Year Plan Line of Effort 1 - Create Affordable and 
Appropriately   Designed Housing Opportunities and Shelter Options for 
Underserved Populations 

4.2.1. Action Item: Vote to 1) Make funding recommendations for up to $2,034,933 in 
Fiscal Year 2024 Funding from the Annual Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant from the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); 2) Approve rankings of proposed 
projects; and 3) Authorize the County as the Collaborative Applicant to prepare and 
submit the Collaborative Application and all related documents to HUD 

Erica Jaramillo presented slides which provided summarized narrative of the funding 
background, project selection and review process, and the Grant Review Committee 
agency recommendations. Susan Funk moved the motion to approve the said 
recommendations. Cathy McClenathen seconded the motion. The motion passed via roll 
call. 

4.2.2. Action Item:  Vote to 1) authorize the County as the CoC Collaborative Applicant to 
submit an application for CoC Builds program funding from HUD; 2) conditionally select 
the Calle Joaquin project from People’s Self-Help Housing as the project for which the CoC 
would be seeking CoC Builds funding; 3) authorize the HSOC Executive Committee to 



provide final approval of a project to submit for the CoC Builds funding, and 4) authorize 
the Chair of the HSOC to sign a letter on behalf of the HSOC in support of the CoC Builds 
application 

Laurel Weir shared summarized information regarding approval of the requested actions. 
Janna Nichols moved to approve the motion, and Kristen Barneich seconded. Roll was 
called and the motion passed. 
 

4.2.3. Information Item:  Planning for 2025-2029 Consolidated Plan for HUD Community 
Development Block Grant, HOME, and Emergency Solutions Grant Funding 

George Solis provided information regarding the 2025 Consolidated Plan Process 
    2025 Community Development Needs Assessment. 

 
4.2.4. Information Item:  Notice of Funding Availability for 2025 Annual Action Plan 
Grants, Permanent Local Housing Allocation grants, and General Fund Support grants for 
homeless assistance 

George Solis shared that NOFA (Notice of Funding Availability) was released on 
September 3. Applications must be submitted electronically via Neighborly software no 
later than October 6 by 11:59pm.  NOFA is posted on the County’s Department of Social 
Homeless Services Division website at slocounty.gov/HomelessServicesGrants 
 

4.3. Implementing Five-Year Plan Line of Effort 4 – Create, Identify, and Streamline 
Funding and Resources 

4.3.1. Action Item: Vote to use Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) 
Program earned interest from Rounds 1 and 2 to fund a pilot, overnight parking program 
for individuals living in their vehicles 

 
George Solis reported that Year 1 of the San Luis Obispo Countywide Plan to Address 
Homelessness included adding smaller scale parking programs with Housing Navigation 
assistance. He also showed a slide featuring the HHAP-1 and HHAP-2 interests earned as 
of June 30, 2024. 
Jack Lahey moved the motion to approve the recommended action, Mark Lamore 
seconded. Roll was called and the motion passed. 
 
4.4. Discussion Item: Committee Updates 

    Mark Lamore mentioned that the Data & Performance Committee is continuing with the 
updates on the procedures on the HMIS system.  The team is also working on data 
quality management. He also mentioned that the data workgroup is working on how to 
report out data to HSOC and other groups.  



Jack Lahey shared that Coordinated Entry Committee is still working on its principle-
based policies. He also mentioned that Interviews for a new CE staff person for CAPSLO 
(Community Action Partnership of San Luis Obispo) is ongoing this week. 

 Laurel Weir reported that Services Coordinating Committee has been working on 
changing its focus and to do deeper dives in certain issues such as encampment issues 
and warming/cooling centers. 

Michelle Shoresman shared an update on the Grants Review Committee. The group has 
met once and will have two more meetings in the future. 

4.5. Discussion Item: Updates from the Homeless Services Division 

              Linda Belch reminded everyone of Community Assessment Plan survey.  
 

5. Future Discussion/Report Items 
   None presented. 

 
6. Next Regular Meeting: November 20, 2024 

 
7. Adjournment 

  Chairperson Michelle Shoresman adjourned the meeting at 2:57pm. 



Action Item 4.1.1 

Page 1 of 4 
 

HOMELESS SERVICES OVERSIGHT COUNCIL 

ACTION ITEM 

November 20, 2024 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 4.1.1 

 

ITEM: Vote to Recommend Nine Persons for Appointment to Vacant or Expiring Seats on 

the Homeless Services Oversight Council 
 

ACTION REQUIRED:  It is requested that the Homeless Services Oversight Council 

(HSOC): approve the nominations of Abby Lassen for a second term for the At Large 

seat she currently holds, in the category of Advocates; Allison Brandum for a second 

term for the At Large seat she currently holds, in the category of Advocates; Benjamin 

Albracht for a first term for the Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans seat 

currently held by Bill Crewe; Brenda Mack for a third term for the Currently or 

Formerly Homeless Persons seat she currently holds; Ilene Brill for a first term for the 

Faith-Based Organizations seat formerly held by Shay Stewart; Jim Dantona for a 

second term for the Businesses seat he currently holds; Raven Lopez for a first term 

for the Behavioral Health Agencies seat currently held by Aurora William; Rick Scott 

for a second term for the Law Enforcement seat he currently holds; and Susan 

Lamont for a third term for the Victim Service Providers seat she currently holds; and 

recommend them to the County of San Luis Obispo Board of Supervisors for 

appointment to the HSOC. 
 

SUMMARY NARRATIVE: 

 

There are 36 membership seats on the HSOC. Members are appointed to the HSOC 

by the County Board of Supervisors, with the exception of seven seats reserved for 

the representatives of the seven incorporated cities. These seven seats are held by 

City Council members who are appointed by their respective City Councils. 

 

With the exception of the seats reserved for elected officials, and the Youth Advisory 

Board seat, members are appointed to three-year terms. To ensure continuity of the 

HSOC, term expirations are staggered among the seats, such that approximately 1/3 

of the seats expire in a given year. Terms expire in January of the year in which the 

term ends. There is no restriction on the number of terms a member may serve. 

 

There are currently eight seats due to expire in January 2025. Six of these seats are 

tied to a specific category and can only be held by a representative from that category 

(Behavioral Health Agencies, Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans, Currently or 

Formerly Homeless Persons, Businesses, Law Enforcement and Victim Service 



Action Item 4.1.1 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Providers). The two remaining seats are At Large seats, meaning they may be held by 

a representative from any of the following categories: County Government Service 

Providers, Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons, Advocates, Affordable Housing 

Developers, Businesses, Faith-Based Organizations, Hospitals, Public Safety 

Organizations, Behavioral Health Agencies, Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers, 

Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans, Housing Authority, County Office of 

Education, Local School Districts, Social Service Providers, Victim Service Providers, 

and Other Community Organizations. 

 

In addition, there is one vacant seat. This seat is tied to a specific category and can 

only be held by a representative from that category (Faith-Based Organizations). 

 

At the September 2024 HSOC meeting, expiring membership terms were reviewed 

and a request was made for applications from the public. A total of twenty-two 

applications were received. An ad hoc Nominating Committee met in October to 

consider the applications and make a recommendation. This recommendation and all 

applications were reviewed by the HSOC Executive Committee at its regular 

November meeting. The HSOC Executive Committee recommends the following nine 

candidates for seats on the HSOC for terms beginning in January 2025: 

 

Abby Lassen for an At Large seat in the Advocates category, for a term expiring in 

January 2028. Abby is a current member of the HSOC Services Coordinating 

Committee, and was a member of the HSOC Alternatives to Encampment Sub-

committee. She has also served as Board member and employee of 5Cities Homeless 

Coalition and County of San Luis Obispo Health Equity Coordinator. She has 

represented people experiencing homelessness as an attorney with California Rural 

Legal Assistance. 

 

Allison Brandum for an at large seat in the Advocates category for a term that will 

expire January 2028. Allison is a volunteer with Team Rubicon USA and an advocate 

for the needs of people experiencing homelessness in the community, including 

providing outreach and medical care to people living in encampments. 

 

Benjamin Albracht for the Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans seat for a term 

that will expire January 2028. Benjamin is a Board member for SLO County Veteran’s 

Collaborative, and a Senior Social Worker for Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing in 

SLO, as well as having firsthand experience as a former homeless veteran. 

 

Brenda Mack for the Currently or Formerly Homeless Person seat for a term that will 

expire January 2028. Brenda has served as a volunteer for Transitions Mental Health 

Association’s Life House clinic, currently serves as Housing Chair of SLO NAACP, and 

has worked as a Psychiatric Technician. She has also volunteered with community-



Action Item 4.1.1 

Page 3 of 4 
 

based organizations to advocate on behalf of people experiencing homelessness and 

mental illness. 

 

Ilene Brill for the Faith-Based Organizations seat for a term that will expire January 

2027. Ilene is Intake Coordinator at Jewish Family Services of San Luis Obispo and a 

member of the SLO Commission on Aging. 

 

Jim Dantona for the Businesses seat, for a term expiring in January 2028. Jim serves as 

the CEO for the SLO Chamber of Commerce, the largest organization in the county 

representing businesses. The Chamber of Commerce works closely with the business 

community on engaging and understanding how to work with government and the 

local unhoused community. 

 

Raven Lopez for the Behavioral Health Agencies seat for a term that will expire 

January 2028. Raven is Director of Fiscal Policy for the County Behavioral Health 

Directors Association of CA. 

 

Rick Scott for the Public Safety Organizations seat for a term that will expire January 

2028. Rick is Chief of Police for the San Luis Obispo Police Department, as well as 

Executive Board Member for Grizzly Academy and a Board Member for Lumina 

Alliance. 

 

Susan Lamont for the Victim Service Providers seat for a term that will expire January 

2028. Susan is the Interim Chief Program Officer for Lumina Alliance, which provides 

services and shelter to persons fleeing from intimate partner violence, and was 

formerly the Associate Director for RISE. In addition to her experience at RISE and 

Lumina Alliance, Susan has previously worked at the LINK in Atascadero and served as 

a patient advocate in Colorado. 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 

No current fiscal impact is anticipated. 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

It is recommended that the Homeless Services Oversight Council approve this item. Upon 

the HSOC’s approval, staff will submit a recommendation for appointment to the Board of 

Supervisors in December. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

Attachment A – All applications received 

Attachment B – HSOC Membership Composition as of November 2024 



Action Item 4.1.1 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Attachment C – Proposed Membership of the HSOC from January 2025 



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 5/24/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HS0C) 

Name: _Lassen Abby 
last First 

Address: 

Number Street 

Email Address: 

Home Phone 

H. 
Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Business Phone 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

[lJ Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Now: member of HSOC Coord. Services Com. Formerly: member of HSOC 
Alternatives to Encampment Sub-com, board member and employee of 5CHC, legal 
consultant to CAPSLO board, chair of Benefits-ARCH, leadership and com. member 
of 2008 10 Year Plan to End Homelessness, safe parking committee member, SLO 
County Homeless Task Force member as Health Equity Coordinator 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I have advocacy skills from my training as an attorney including at CRLA where I 
represented persons who were experiencing homelessness regarding safe parking 
and accessing homeless services and public benefits. I also will use my experience 
in community collaborations as a social service provider, including as a Coordinator of 
the Family Resource Center in Nipomo, and as SLOPH's Health Equity Coordinator. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 1 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

I served on committees which designed the 2008 plan to end homelessness and the 
Klaprood task force which sought to create a homeless services center for s. county. 
I learned about the issues which persons experiencing homelessness face from 
representing them as an attorney (CRLA), as a benefits advocate (5CHC), an agency 
rep(CAPSLO and 5CHC), and as a services provider (Family Resource Center). 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I believe that my experience and skills will be beneficial to HSOC as it seeks to 
implement the current 5 year Strategic Plan and improve its own functioning. I have 
strong skills in collaborating with community agencies, understanding data, and 
strategizing solutions. I think that HSOC is becoming more effective in its work and I 
would especially like to ensure that homeless services are equitably available. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed Abby Lassen 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 5/24/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 2 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 9/17/2024

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name:_Brandum Allison 

Address 

Email Address 

Home Phone 

last 

Number 

First 

Street 

Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Business Phone 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers 

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons 

D Businesses 

D Hospitals 

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers 

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans 

D County Office of Education 

D Social Service Providers 

D Other Community Organizations 

[lJ Advocates 

D Affordable Housing Developers 

D Faith-Based Organizations 

D Public Safety Organizations 

D Behavioral Health Agencies 

D Housing Authority 

D Local School Districts 

D Victim Service Providers 

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 
services agency or organization: 
Current member of HSOC and a volunteer with Team Rubicon USA 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 
As a current member I have been a strong advocate for the needs of the homeless in 
our community. In my current job I provide outreach and medical care to the 
homeless at the encampments. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 3 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 
As a current HSOC member I am up to date on homeless person needs and the 
current projects that are being considered as well as the 5 year plan. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
Continue the work and advocacy that is important to our homeless and our community 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No 

Signed �t'-'-
�

l.l--�,..........:_....:::...._..::;...:!..._�L..=....___:==:=::,,,,,__- Date 9/ 1·7 /2024

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 4 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/4/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HS0C) 

Name: William Aurora 

last First 

Address: 

Number Street 

Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Email Address( 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ----------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

[lJ Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Currently on the board of Paso Cares. Lead the north county warming center, going 
on third season. Street outreach into the riverbeds and under brid ges with Hope & 
Faith Street Outreach. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I am a mental health advocate. I have family with lived experience. I work on the 
streets, under bridges and in the riverbed helping people access resources, and learn 
to have faith in their decision making abilities. Also offer tangible supports of needed 
supplies. I have run the north county warming center for the 22/23, and 23/24 winter 
seasons. I am preparing for the 24/25 winter season as well. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 5 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

My education includes degrees in Sociology, Public Administration and Addiction 
Counseling. Employment includes running a homeless shelter, homeless services 
manager for Yolo County, and work in a locked residential treatment center. I have 
been conducting street outreach and support to individuals and families since 2008, 
on the streets of SLO County. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

This is an area in which I am passionate about. I believe that it takes a villate to solve 
societal issues of this magnitude. I believe it takes collaboration and out of the box 
ideas to meet with real progress. I believe that my years of experience are able to 
bring valuable perspective to the conversation. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed Aurora William 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 10/4/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 6 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LU IS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/2/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: Crewe William (Bill) 

Address 

Last 

Number Street 

First 

s 

Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Email Addre 

Home Phone Business Phone: 
----------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

[7] Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

President, Central Coast Veterans Helping Veterans; Treasurer, SLO veterans 
Services Collaborative; Treasurer, Senior Volunteer Services; Treasurer, Pelican 
Point Homeowners Association 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I am a retired Army Colonel with 25 years of services. I have been involved in 
working with homeless veterans and collaborating with various agencies providing 
services to veterans. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 7 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients:

I was a founding member of Shower the People and for several years worked with the 
homeless in providing shower operations. I have participated in three PITs 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary):

I have compassion for the homeless - particularly for those Veterans experiencing 
homelessness. I believe we can do more to relieve their plight. I want to contribute to
being part of the solution. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of
Supervisors.

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission?

[Z] Yes D No

Signed __ &" ���-6-="'"------"'�"----J,,�.c:::..___._,=- --- Date 10/2/2024

OFFICIAL USE ONLY

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s} published? __ Yes __ No

Additional Comments:

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 8 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/7/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Mack. Brenda L

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: 
---------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

[Z] Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Bridge to housing lived experience panel.current HSOC member 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I have lived experience and continue to advocate for the unhoused 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 9 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

I have lived experience in the shelters as well as on the street 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I am a voice for the voiceless 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed Brenda Mack 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 10/7/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 10 of 50



Date: 6/11/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: _
Dantona, James A 

Last First Middle Initial 

Email Address 

Home Phone: 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Business Phooe: 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

[Zl Businesses

D Hospi tals

D Nm profit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizatioos Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizatio ns

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizatioos

D Public Safety Organizatioos

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliatioo, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organizatioo: 

I serve as the CEO for the SLO Chamber of Commerce. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

The SLO Chamber of Commerce serves as the largest organization in the county 
representing businesses. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 11 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

We work closely with the business community on engaging and understand how to 
work with government and our local unhoused community. In my previous work as a 
staff member for an elected official in the City of Los Angeles, I have spent many 
years working on policy, services and engagement of homelessness in communities. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

Previously, the Downtown SLO Association was providing the business voice for the 
HSOC, but since that person has left there is no longer a business voice on the 
Council. Having business' voice present on the council would provide a helpful 
perspective. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed rDa.;cb;-;r,,,a, 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 6/11/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 12 of 50



Date: 1017124 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD. COMMISSION. OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC)

Name: Scott Rick K 
------------------------------

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: - ---==---------' --------

Number Street City 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: 

Zip Code 

Business Phone: -
====------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

□ 

□ 

✓ 

County Government Service Providers (Behavioral Health, Planning, Social Services, 
Veterans Services, or Probation) 
Non-profit Service Providers 
Which area(s) of the county does this organization serve? ________ _ 
Affordable Housing Developers 
Local K-12 Academic Institution 
Local Businesses/Business Organizations 
Law Enforcement 
Local Health Provider 
Local Faith Community 
Interested Community (preferentially with homelessness experience) 
Currently or Formerly Homeless Person 
Veterans Services Representative 
Local University or School of Higher Education 
Local Hospital 
Victims' Services Representative 

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 
services agency or organization: 

Chief of Police for the San Luis Obispo Police Department, I am a current member of 
the HSOC having served the last two years, Board Member for Lumina Alliance, 
Executive Board Member for Grizzly Academy 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I am a career police executive, leading the San Luis Obispo Police Department, 
managing a diverse team of professionals working to address the effects of 
homelessness within our County and community by developing and implementing 
least harm approaches. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 13 of 50



Application for Membership on the Homeless Services Oversight Council 
Page Two 

While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be 
considered by the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of 
Supervisors. Please summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with 
homeless clients: 

Our department and city has a lengthy history of funding and in working with and 
providing compassionate assistance to our homeless community. We are continually 
developing and implementing least harm approaches as well as accountability 
measures for all members of our community. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I am currently filling one of the two public safety seats on this committee. I came into 
my seat during the second year of the three year term so I only severed two years 
and must now reapply. 

I welcome the opportunity to work with a broader team representing an expert based, 
cross-section, of community leaders making change and promoting positive and 
actionable programs to improve the lives of all members of our community, 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meet�s each year and, if 
necessary, in numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l:::J Yes D No 

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement 
of disclosure as �ublic official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice 
Commission? Ell Yes D No 

Date 1om24 Signed _R_lck_S_co_tt ____________ _ -------------

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? Yes 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone numbers(s) published? __ Yes 

Additional Comments: 

No 

No 
--

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 14 of 50



Date: IO•rJ0 "2-t 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Na me: l--o.fY'lo-+ 
Last 

Address 
Number 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: 

�LltSML 
First 

Street City 

Business Phone: 

Middle Initial 

Zip Code 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority 

D Local School Districts
Mvictim s� P�vid� 

� ::;:::::;-- �

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 
services agency or organization: 

)_
,1 11. 

O (} I� ,, . 
• J'-n \1 O.."-C-€

-,- o k a.. '5-\-a f-"f- �e l.,{Y..J..,Jt..,),._ (5> u..m.,1\.,.C. 

$e<r v i 14 c \ ,t'"-� -tf:.a.,+ /4.a_� Pk {J12'ri C: A-cecJ?

S'€'>'u..�\ vi ole l,{C e ...

{Y\'-i Ccu-1-c, 1'--l ,)'> ole �S CLe1/ V-ro6'-a__.u_... 6-0'.�\.uo
Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 
C(..�• aceVtCL- 'ru,-.s- .£yne,.,'>qe='1-� SJ--e.fk....<.�(�1L 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 15 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless cli�nts: . n 
.:C A.� 5.,u-cc d1 � --rte_ +) S DC. ( � s i � i-Cou ,._c ' 1) J'Z)v

f 0� -le r�� a.,.._ d.. I Col\.:-h ..... ue --t c.::, �ea.�"- <? q� ... l'VlE' e 4-\,g. -r.

loc-kev-e ()'1'--{ iae-l�1:Vc·ht..JC q") a v;-<:,IM �e<:ru1ce Pvo<.....ii_ e..,, ,s

\(cltA o-.6le a. ...... cR )o.e.,"--i. -6v....o,..,..., Cl. DV 09e11..c_p_, _j -t---f-.,A-.h:-
S ko......ue or.·, 'bu.e e )L pc,-, e /....Ce' 
Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

:S:: a.,\,\. --.po.ss·,�c-.�-e. a.bo,.__...\- e \e va+i<'
-$ 

-+l"-e i "-A. pot--\-a.A..-.f i SS\..X"
� l'-':M.eU?SSA.eSS ·,I\... 0--)r Cc:>0,-._+j 0.1-.c:ft 0a.,(_

_
+ -(0

C o,c-1--i Ui. e --to /o.e � + c) if..e c 01\. 0e,.,< Sc-. --h � ,�a rd2 ·, ''1-
0L\. 1 Q \'.J()'rOC.d.., u-ic C01--.:+-itv .... uPd) c....D\\c.ba--C:Zi-i'� � / 

-f-( e>O'S < >"i V r 0v I d..e_ ,S v.2 Co i-.. bPS. T S +re a u.. � , ... <? � s:e_ 'r vie. fl,'.) Q 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority /meetings each year and, if necessary, in
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? � Yes D No 

ointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
ublic official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

□ No

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date I O "' ":f 0l:1

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? Yes No 
-- --

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 16 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC)

Name: _,:_�D;.s,,.[Y/;.iuli\u.al..L.{ ____ _!...!A.!!..!IL'�J Wl::....L.._ ______ £ ___ _ 
Last

Address:!
Number

Email Address:�

Home Phone:

First

Street

Middle Initial

City Zip Code

Business Phone: --

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent:

[XJ County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

IX'I social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community
services agency or organization:

Rd,'rt.d APJ /cwJ Joli,/ f,JorKtr e, Dtpf. of loti.il 1�rv1tt'J.
13cfn t,,Jo,--K. ;)J Jr') APJ Jbt iJ / Wo,Ktr- Jv1prrv,'/0r wi-fh +he
�lpi. l� Soli.i I Jin1itr J ID/N/zt/. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above:

I& yr1. (;:t.p�n?ntt, :JJ J f ()t/.1 / t,JtJ,--/(�, e /)JJ
I 

r,l)yJ wil( bt

J Sl,\p-t,nr,·J,nj Jo,/)/ l,JDrK.tr e, DfJ.

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 17 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

A1 J CwJ Jnd /IP} Jott,/ WtJ&r, T. Wor/<..cd wi"fh /lll)i?Y, . 

hoMtft { J { /,'tnt-1 f-6r:1 ;/it 1, t!dtr.f_ f {tfJ!-n�Mf _j_dul!-1)} ;JJ,J17n/j
1\11 � ;,riv t"'J '"1 Jnd roih$.i,,� nJK/. J_,-, -1-h,1 'T'nl, l!r 

�,£ �plalo iv�� :Jd n��?,e!!::::j}j: (attac� ,' ,:.:�: ::.:, :::.:'Y�f nt,d.

"'I h)vl W)-J-tho/ Mom1/cJintff l/1[t-O/e, in +he {�Mvu1ifJ /()/t-cA 
J/1 tNir �c lbvi.hh I 

OVtr- -f�c for/ I ht ldvt M -/n;,rif; -fo 0G 

p)r:+ a.f- .fhc JolufilVl, JnJ bt li'tvt- T.. tJn bt J VJ/1-1; bit rvdtfYJ btr 
Of -f-hl GO¾n li{, 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to_ prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? Jg] Yes D No 

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

1K] Yes D No

Signed )J,/,4, /(.p /<.VVOL/A Date /0 /'-//2.t./ 
I 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 18 of 50



Date: 
10/4/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: 
ALBRACHT BENJAMIN R 

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers D Advocates

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons D Affordable Housing Developers

D Businesses D Faith-Based Organizations

D Hospitals D Public Safety Organizations

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers D Behavioral Health Agencies

l✓I Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans D Housing Authority

D County Office of Education D Local School Districts

D Social Service Providers D Victim Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Board member SLO County Veteran's Collaborative 
Veteran Affairs Supportive Housing, Senior Social Worker GS12 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

Senior Social Worker for Dept. of Veteran Affair's, assigned to VA clinic downtown 
SLO. Have worked in the VA Supportive Housing division for five years housing 
homeless Veterans. Current LCSW in the state of California. 

--------------------·-··--······· ·-·· ··· · ·

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 19 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

I work daily with homeless Veterans. At one point during Covid I was the only VASH 
employee, managing a case load of over 200 Veterans in this county. I am a former 
homeless Veteran. I am intimately aware of all Veteran services in this county have 
work with other community agencies daily. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I want to help end homelessness and improve the living conditions of all residents in 
SLO County. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? I✓ I Yes D No 

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[Z] Yes D No

Signed 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 20 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 1 0/2/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Parker-Kennedy Christine 

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: -

Number Street City Zip Code 

E mail Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ----------

Place an "X" next to  the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

I✓ I Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

I attend Atascadero United Methodist Church, volunteer with PR ECHO, am a 
member of the League of Women Voters and am on their Housing and Homelessness 
Committee. I also volunteer with the Art Studios in PR. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I am a long time member of AUMC (twenty years) and recently facilitated a small grou p study on 
homelessness, based on the book Grace Can Lead Us Home: A Christian Call to End Homelessness 
(by Kevin Nye). Members of the church were very receptive and are looking for ways to implement 
some of the suggestions and philosophies discussed in the book. We are an inclusive, inviting and 
reconciling congregation, open to people from all walks of life , and committed to service in our 
community. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 21 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

See attachment. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
I was asked to apply for this position by two of our church leaders, as well as Wendy 
Lewis, of ECHO. 
I have followed the SLO Countywide Plan to Address Homelessness since its inception. I want to be 
informed and to have knowledge of how this plan is progressing, as well as have an overall 
understanding of issues related to housing and homelessness and how they can be addressed, 
especially by our church community. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

OYes D No 

Signed Christine Parker-Kennedy

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 10/2/2024

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 22 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be 
considered by the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of 
Supervisors. Please summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with 
homeless clients: 

I have volunteered with ECHO for about 20 years, and have been with PR ECHO since they opened 
in 2020. My husband and I work at ECHO 2-3 times/week, preparing and/or serving meals and 
running the shower program, where we provide hygiene items and supervision. Learning about 
housing and homelessness and ways to combat the significant problems that it presents is a strong 
interest of mine. 

I have attended several informational webinars on related topics, most recently such as: 

The Housing Supply Imbalance (Michael Foote, w/ REACH) 
What is Affordable Housing and How Do We Get It? 
How Will We Live Tomorrow? A Social Housing Model 
Who Can Afford to Live in SLO County? 

As a member of the League’s Homelessness sub-committee, I meet with them monthly to discuss 
relevant news and ways that we can advocate for housing solutions. 

Last week, I toured Grover Beach’s Cabins for Change with members of LWV, to learn more about 
how they operate, programs they offer, and how they are funded. 

I read as much as possible in the Tribune, CalMatters, NYTimes and the New Yorker about related 
issues and legislation. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 23 of 50



Date: 5/13/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Boatright , Daphne L 

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ---------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

I✓ I Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Cuesta College registered nursing /Clinical faculty 

- teaching assignment includes primary care and behavioral health assessments with

homeless population in city of SLO

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

As a faculty member and community resident I have extensive experience working 
with the local homeless population and community service agencies. I have been 
encouraged most recently to see an increase in care coordination and am hopeful that 
my experiences will add to the narrative and provide new insights for addressing 
stigma and cultural biases. I like to take a practical approach to problem solving that is 
inclusive and involves collaborative work. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 24 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

Please refer to previous question. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I would appreciate having a voice "at the table" for the population that I work with and 

see regularly in my community. I understand the complexities of medical care, (ER, 

Primary care, non-compliance, substance use disorders etc.) and the realities of 

providing care and housing. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed Daphne Boatright 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 5/13/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 25 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/6/2024

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: _Azeem Hanan 

Last First 

Address: _____ _ 
Number Street 

Email Address: 

Home Phone 

Middle Initial 

---
City Zip Code 

Business Phone: ----------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers 

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons 

D Businesses 

D Hospitals 

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers 

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans 

D County Office of Education 

D Social Service Providers 

D Other Community Organizations 

D Advocates 

D Affordable Housing Developers 

[Z} Faith-Based Organizations 

D Public Safety Organizations 

D Behavioral Health Agencies 

D Housing Authority 

D Local School Districts 

D Victim Service Providers 

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 
services agency or organization: 

- Founding Director & CFO, Khuba Worldwide Association (www.kwafund.org)
- Volunteer, SLO4HOME
- Member, Rotary, San Luis Obispo

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 
I am currently serving as the Founding Director & CFO of a Christian faith-based 
nonprofit, Khuba Worldwide Association (www.kwafund.org), dedicated to reducing 
homelessness by empowering individuals to attain financial sustainability through 
mentorship and microlending. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 26 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

Through the Men's Group at Father's House Church in SLO County, I had the 
opportunity to work very closely with a young homeless family for several years. It 
was rewarding to see this family break free from homelessness through my 
assistance with identifying resources for employment, mental health services, support 

groups, and kids' education. I desire to see many more success stories such as this. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

Growing up in a third-world country, I know firsthand the pain of living in poverty. This 
compels me to serve the local community by reducing homelessness and improving 
lives one at a time. I would like an opportunity to be part of the solutions that HSOC 
offers. I bring an informed & unique perspective to solving this complex and pressing 
issue that my beloved SLO County faces. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No 

Signed ----�-�---�-vu,n,,, ______ Date 10/6/2024 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 27 of 50



Date: 
08/15/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Brill Ilene B 
Name: ___________________________________ _ 

Middle Initial 

Address: 

City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

[{] Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Jewish Family Services of San Luis Obispo - Intake Coordinator 
JGC-Federation of SLO - Board Member, Vice-President of Jewish Family Services 
San Luis Obispo Commission on Aging -Alternate Member at Large 
San Luis Obispo EFSP - Board Member 
RSVP volunteer 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

As Intake Coordinator for JFS, I interact with clients and other agencies, facilitate the delivery of assistance, and provide 
resolJ'ces to residents cl SLO County (regardless of their circumstances, religious beliefs, race, ethnicity, national origin, 
diversability, gender identity/expression or sexual orientation)who are in financial need (income 200% below the poverty line). 
30% cl the people contacting our organization are unhoused. I provide support services such as paying for storage fees, OMV 
registration, propane and gasoline, impound fees and more as wel as referrals to other canmunity organizations. I 'Mlrk in 
partnership with over 70 local agencies including 40 Prado, ECHO, the 5 Cities Homeless Coalition, SSVF, and TMHA to meet 
the emergency needs of our dients. In addition, I collect, analyze and interpret demographic data from the interviews I conduct 
and the applications submitted by dients to write grants and reports. As a member cl the SLO Canmission on Aging, I stay 
informed about issues specifically faced by homeless seniors and work directly with tther members to address their needs and 
concerns. In my role as an EFSP Board Member, I participate in determining how grant funds for local homeless service 
providers are distributed. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 28 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 
As Intake Coordinator for JFS, I'm in direct contact with the homeless. Part of our eligibility process involves a detailed phone 
interview to determine the client's needs and how to achieve the best positive outcomes. The issues I discuss with the unhoused 
include: fear of police impounding the vehicle they're living in because it's not registered or insured (lack of safe parking), food 
insecurity, and the shortage of shelter beds, hotel vouchers, and affordable housing. The relationships I've established with other 
area social service organizations is vital in achieving our agency's mission. My participation on the Commission on Aging and 
ESFP boards keeps me engaged in community affairs and involved with other service providers, offering opportunities to 
collaborate and expand services. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
l™m a dedicated and passionate advocate for the homeless and appreciate this opportunity to make a positive impact on
improving the lives of our fellow citizens as well as actively participate to meet the goals of the countywide plan to address their 
needs and concerns. I believe my direct experience with the homeless coupled with my knowledge of area resources and
partnerships with local social service providers, will augment the mission of HSOC.

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? [{] Yes D No 

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[{] Yes D No 

Signed __ ft��-��-�----------Date 08/15/2024 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 29 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/4/2024 

, Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: Avila-Quiros Ingrid
Last First 

Address: 
Number Street 

Email Address: 

Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ________ _ 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

lv'I Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

Iv' I Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

lvl Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 
services agency or organization: 

I am currently working as a clinical pharmacist at DSH-Atascadero State Hospital, 
which serves a forensic patient population. The direct experience that I have with 
homeless people is that I volunteer at ECHO in Atascadero. In addition, I have been 
a SLO CASA advocate since 2019, volunteered at ABC church with youth group 
since 2017, and at Templeton Unified School District some years ago. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 
I have 22 years of experience working with people with mental health issues in a 
variety of settings; inpatient, and outpatient services. Additionally, I am knowledgable 

_on susbstance abuse treatment, which is a value to people that are transitioning. 
Through my work position, I am constantly involved in training patients on overdose 
prevention through Narcan nasal spray implementation. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 30 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 
In the past, I have been involved in various programs that offer services for the 
homeless community in Atascadero. My friends have set up temporary showering 
facitlities. to assist them, as well as groups that provided morning meals to the 
homeless that are dispersed around downtown Atascadero during the winter months. 
Putting that all aside, I have also collected clothes donations for ECHO, 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
I am passionate for the direction of the program. Homelessness is an issue that 
needs to be addressed, and it is important to have a multidisciplinary group to be able 
to bring to the table all the different compoenents that need to be looked at and 
evaluated, and be cost conscientous about how the funds are being used. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? I ti I Yes D No 

Should you be- appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

�Yes D No 

Signed� _ Date 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 31 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 1 0/5/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Valentine Jackie L 

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: ________ _ 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ---------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

I✓ I County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons 

D Businesses 

D Hospitals 

I✓ I Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

I✓ I Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

I✓! County Office of Education

l✓I Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations 

D Advocates 

D Affordable Housing Developers 

D Faith-Based Organizations 

l✓I Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

l✓I Housing Authority

I✓ I Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers 

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

None, just let me know if I can help 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

I have attached my resume 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 32 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

I have a mentally ill sister who has been suffering from this for many years, and 
understand it is a problem in America at the moment. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I just wanted to see if I could help in any way. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed Jackie Valentine 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 1 0/5/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 33 of 50



Experience: 

Invest or Hire, LLC 

Sr. Recruiter & Founder, August 2022 - Present 

• Proficient in Website Development, with a focus on Google Sites, for
creating visually appealing and user-friendly web solutions. 

• Expertise in Marketing Campaigns, utilizing a strategic approach to drive
brand visibility and engagement.

• Adept in Search Engine Optimization (SEO) techniques to enhance online
presence and boost organic traffic.

• Strong command of Boolean Logic, enabling precise information retrieval
and data analysis.

• Skilled in Metrics & Analytics, using data-driven insights to optimize
performance and make informed decisions.

• Experienced in Project Management, ensuring efficient execution of tasks
and timely project delivery.

• Successful in Contract Negotiation, with a track record of securing
favorable terms and agreements.

• Creative strategist with a passion for developing innovative solutions and
captivating Content Creation.

• Proficient in Advertising, leveraging various platforms to reach and engage
target audiences.

• Expertise in Job Board Sourcing and Social Media Sourcing to identify top
talent.

• Proficient in Interviewing and Onboarding, fostering a positive candidate
experience.

• Skilled in Compliance Management, ensuring adherence to legal and
regulatory requirements.

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 34 of 50



● Proven ability to partner with VC's, Founders, and Investors to secure
funding for ambitious projects.

● Extensive experience in Recruiting across various domains, including
Technical, Sales, Healthcare, Engineering, Scientific, Manufacturing, and
Administration, and Executive roles.

Executive Trackers, LLC
CEO, April 2006 - July 2022

● Proficient in Website Development, specializing in Joomla, to craft dynamic
and user-centric online platforms.

● Adept in devising and executing impactful Marketing Campaigns to
maximize brand visibility and engagement.

● Authored a comprehensive Training Guidebook to facilitate knowledge
transfer and employee development.

●Well-versed in Compliance & Regulation, ensuring adherence to legal
standards and industry requirements.

● Spearheaded Internal Hiring & Onboarding processes to nurture a
productive and cohesive workforce.

● Skillful in Employee Training, promoting professional growth and skills
enhancement.

● Experienced in both Remote and On-Site Management, adept at
optimizing team performance.

● Applied Search Engine Optimization (SEO) techniques to boost online
visibility and organic tra�c.

● Proficient in Boolean Logic for precise information retrieval and data
analysis.

● Skilled in Metrics & Analytics, leveraging data insights to drive informed
decision-making.

● Accomplished Project Manager with a strong track record of timely and
e�cient project delivery.

● Proven success in Contract Negotiation, securing advantageous terms and
agreements.

● Adept in Creative Strategy, driving innovation in problem-solving and
content creation.

● Proficient in Job Board Sourcing, utilizing diverse platforms to identify top
talent.

● Expert in Interviewing & Screening, ensuring alignment of candidate skills
with company needs.

●Well-versed in Recruitment across all industries, bringing a wealth of
experience to diverse talent searches.

● Conducted Behavioral Assessments to identify ideal candidates and

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 35 of 50



ensure cultural fit.
● Diligently managed Reference & Background Checks to validate candidate

qualifications.
● Proficient in Cold Calling, employing a proactive approach to identify and

engage top talent.

Previous Experience Includes: Catering Waitress at the University of New
Hampshire, O�ce Manager at Kevin Jewelers, Sales Representative at The United
Colors of Benetton, Clerk at Countrywide Bank, Market Researcher at Focus and
Testing, Market Researcher at Davis Research, Directory Developer at
Greenyourself.org, Directory Developer and SEO Specialist at EZ Limo Rentals,
Directory Developer at TheRecruiterDirectory.com, Website Developer at
Incentihire.com, Business Development Specialist for Telemedicine, Investment
Relations VP at NVIS

Education:
McIntosh College (A former subsidiary of SNHU, no longer in
operation) 2000-2002, Dover, NH
Major: Business Management and Visual Communications
Technical Sta�ng Certification TSC & CSP (non-renewed)
First Aid Red Cross Certified

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 36 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 10/3/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC} 

Name: Carr Jason 

First 

Address 
Number Street 

Email Address: 

W. 

Middle Initial 

City Zip Code 

Home Phone: Business Phone: 
---------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers 

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons 

D Businesses 

D Hospitals 

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers 

J 111 Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education 

D Social Service Providers 

D Other Community Organizations 

I II I Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers 

D Faith-Based Organizations 

D Public Safety Organizations 

D Behavioral Health Agencies 

D Housing Authority 

D Local School Districts 

D Victim Service Providers 

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 
I was the Homeless Health SW for French Hospital for 1.5 yrs, following homeless 
patients inpatient and in the community, before trasitioning to the ECM for Dignity 
Health. There I focused on assisting patients with navigation of services and linkage 
to resources, outside of the hospital. I have worked closely with CAPSLO, MCU, 
CCT, CAT, SLO Homeless Response, as well as Public Health. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 
I have recently returned to a position as a contracted HUD-VASH SW, something I 
did for over six years prior to moving to Dignity. Additionally, I was part of Dignity's 
Street Medicine team; the only active Street Medicine team that goes into 
encampment; I did this for nearly two years. I've worked closely with RCP and often 
visited patients at Prado as well as RCP at Prado. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 37 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 
I've dealt with just about every area of homelessness. I've worked behind the scenes 
in housing and have a deep knowledge base to the barriers to housing in SLO. I've 
worked to in the community pre- hospitalization, during hospitalization, and post 
discharge. I've worked with Sierra Wellness, Drug and Alcohol, and Mental Health. I'd 
prefer an advocate role, but would be willing to represent an org serving Veterans. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
I feel I have unique knowledge and insight into the strengths and failures of SLO's 
response to the homeless, both citizens and Veteran's. I have a wealth of work in the 
field, on the ground, as well as at the Mezzo and Macro level. I attended the 2024 
Healthcare for the Homeless Conference, as well as the Keck School of Medicine's 
Street Medicine Symposium. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? lvl Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

�Yes D No 

Signed_� _____ _._-_· _________ Date_irJ_ftl_J_/Z-_1 ___ _ 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appojntment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 38 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR-COMMITTEE

Date: 10/04/2024

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight-Council (HSOC)

Name: __ ..!.Kl�e2!i�n _______ _:K�n:.:.:·s:.:t.=;ee=--_______ ....ic ______ _

Last First Middle Initial

Address----

Email Address:

Home Phone:

Number Street City Zip Code

Business Phone:
---------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent:

D County Government Service Providers

0 Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of E.ducation

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

0 Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety O3anizations

D Behavioral Health AgencteS

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community
services agency or organization:

I am not currently affiliated as staff, as a member or as a volunteer with any business 
or organization in the commun ity 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above:
As a formerly homeless indiv idual 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 39 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

Please see attached statement 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
While my faith motivates me to help others, my primary drive comes from my 
personal journey and the desire to advocate for improvements in services for those 
experiencing homelessness. Serving on the HSOC would allow me to leverage my 
experiences to bring attention to the needs of individuals facing homelessness, 
ensuring that their voices are heard and their challenges addressed. 

Please note: It is possible that the selectiQn committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? � Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

�Yes D No 

Signed '-I
�

,
� 

Date tD-1/-2{;S.J--/ 

------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------------·

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommen�ed for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 40 of 50



My firsthand experience with homelessness provides me with a deep understanding of the 
challenges individuals face when seeking stable housing and support services. Having 
navigated the complexities of homelessness, I have encountered numerous obstacles that 
highlight the need for effective and accessible support systems. 

As a visually impaired person, I have faced additional difficulties in accessing resources and 
services, which has further shaped my perspective on the barriers that many individuals 
experience. This insight is crucial in understanding how to create more inclusive systems that 
meet the diverse needs of those affected by homelessness. 

Additionally, my spouse is a combat veteran, and together we have confronted the challenges 
of securing housing and resources for veterans and low-income families. This experience has 
deepened my awareness of the specific struggles faced by veterans within the homeless 
community and underscores the importance of tailored support for these individuals. 

While my faith motivates me to help others, my primary drive comes from my personal journey 
and the desire to advocate for improvements in services for those experiencing homelessness. 
Serving on the HSOC would allow me to leverage my experiences to bring attention to the 
needs of individuals facing homelessness, ensuring that their voices are heard and their 
challenges addressed. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 41 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE

Date: {Jtf, 1
) 
UJ2.i/-

Applying For: H meless Services Oversight Council {HSOC)

Name:

Address:

Email Address:

Home Phone:

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent:

D County Government Service Providers
�rrently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

servicesij;;t;;
g
•�

ti

u� /
e_

5 s. � � �. j; �� ,. � �4£ ��5 or, � 
d'��: {Wt13��7f ft()

Please i:lescribe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above:.=5> pcvd_ M � 5/ do_-" 4. ' / 0ft � 
jJ-x__ v-/4_,e_ � . � U-t-

, ·A- ( '7>1-�"!!4 ;;;�� j'' b/1 � nag•rt � tJ � nou..J 6s,

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 42 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

{tf-e�«- AU- dhY:� �)

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional 
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? D Yes D No 

Should you be aP, ointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
ublic official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

Yes D No 

Signed ____,.�
-1--

_____,__/<___;;.__. i11£___,;
k--__ Date _/�tJ /_7�/ ;2_

-.r-
�-

� I I I 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------� 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 43 of 50



Additional sheet from Lael White - Oct 7, 2024 

My knowledge of issues relating to homelessness has primarily been derived from 
my own personal experiences. I understand the effects of PTSD and problems that 
"snowball", how teens & females are particularly vulnerable to predators, and at my 
age I'm finally no longer embarrassed to talk about anything. 

I also feel for the many veterans living without a home ... my husband was a 
Vietnam War veteran who could not overcome the horrors he witnessed and the 
treatment he received after returning to the United States. He left when our 
children were very young, and eventually died of a drug overdose. I wish I knew 
then at least some of what I understood later after attaining more knowledge & 
education. 

Since that time I've spent countless hours in therapy, and went back to school as a 
single parent when I was 30 years old. I never graduated from high school, but 
proudly earned two bachelor's degrees (magna cum laude, Anthropology & 
Psychology) and completed two years of graduate school in Applied Anthropology. 
This in turn allowed me to earn higher wages, which eventually led to the purchase 
of my own home, which as you can imagine was especially meaningful to me. 

At a weekend seminar I attended several years ago, when asked a general question 
about our greatest achievement in life, I answered that I survived without ever 
being beaten, raped, or killed. That got a laugh when the instructor said "that's a 
pretty low bar" and I laughed along with them at the time, but later I realized and 
positively concluded that is indeed my greatest achievement in life because of those 

years I spent living on the street, and I am so proud of it ... no judgment towards 
those who do not understand that sentiment, because I definitely get it to the core of 
my being and that's all that matters to me, because I have lived it (and survived). 

Well, I'm not sure what help I could be, but that's about it in a nutshell... sorry for 
the last minute submission, and thanks for listening. 

Lael 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 44 of 50



Date: 7/31/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Crawford, Nancy 
Last First Middle Initial 

Address: 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

I✓ I Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

Board of Directors for Central Coast Commission for Seniors, Area Agency on Aging. 
Board Member for Marian Foundation 
Board of Directors for the Santa Maria Valley Chamber 
Santa Barbara County Transit Advisory Committee 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

My company, Care Connection Transport & Home Care Services, provides 
transportation for San Luis County hospitals and emergency departments in which we 
often transport homeless clients. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 45 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 
involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 
the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 
summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 
I have been a strong advocate for raising awareness about transportation as a social 
determinant of health as well as a barrier to homeslessness. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 
I believe my unique perspective in the trasnportation and care coordination industry 
can contribute valuable insights to addressing homelessness. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional
information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 
numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 
disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No 

Signed __ � _______________ Date 7/31/2024 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 46 of 50



Date: 
4/25/2024 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) 

Name: Bennett, Nicole, I 

last First Middle Initial 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

[Z} Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizatio ns

D Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

I have worked with the Coe in SLO County for about seven years. Originally I sat on 
the Coe Board as a represenative for CenCal Health and the homeless community 
members CenCal Health serves. I have recenetly transitioned to working with the 
Santa Maria Wisdom Center through their Enhanced Care Mangement and 
Community Supports Programs as the Diretor of CalAIM programs. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

The Santa Maria Wisdom Center is a business that offers supportive services to help 
members connect with organiations that provide direct services. Our Enhanced Care 
Management team provides supportive services to all CenCal Health members 
expereincng homelessness, have SMI/SUD dx, and is at risk for institutionalization or 
hospitalization. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 47 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

I have been an advocate for community members experieincing homelessness for 
about a decade in the San Luis Obispo County. Through my tenure on the CoC Board 
through CenCal Health and as a board member for El Camino Homeless 
Organization (ECHO), I'm very familiar with barriers that our community members 
experience. I work to provide these members with supportive services through the 
ECM Program. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I would like to sit as a member and serve the community through the HSOC council 
because I beleive in the mission and goal of this group. It is important that we have a 
variety of community parrtners involved in the CoC's and I would like to come back to 
the CoC as a represenative for the Santa Maria Wisdom Center. We provide ECM 
and Housing supports for members expereicing homelessness and will be a CES 
Provider. 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

S. d Nicole Bennett 
Date 4/25/2024 

1gne __________________ _ 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 48 of 50



COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 

TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE 

Date: 
10/06/2024 

Applying For: Homeless Services Oversight Council {HSOC) 

Name: Lopez, Raven C 

Last First Middle Initial 

Address: 
_________ _ 

Number Street City Zip Code 

Email Address: 

Home Phone: Business Phone: ----------

Place an "X" next to the HSOC membership category below which you wish to represent: 

D County Government Service Providers

D Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons

D Businesses

D Hospitals

D Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers

D Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans

D County Office of Education

D Social Service Providers

D Other Community Organizations

I✓ I Advocates

D Affordable Housing Developers

D Faith-Based Organizations

D Public Safety Organizations

D Behavioral Health Agencies

D Housing Authority

D Local School Districts

D Victim Service Providers

Please cite your affiliation, as staff member, board member or volunteer, with any community 

services agency or organization: 

I work for the County Behavioral Health Directors Association of CA (CBHDA) as the 

Director of Fiscal Policy. 

Please describe how you qualify for the HSOC category which you have selected above: 

In my role as the Director o f  Fiscal Policy at CBHDA, I advocate to the state on behalf of county 
behavioral directors (BHD) to increase funding and to positively impact proposed legislation and 
polices. One such area that I have been working in is on housing and homelessness across the state. 
With the increased attention on counties and cities to solve the housing shortage and homelessness 
crisis, it has become imperative to advocate on behalf of county BHDs in these areas. I believe my 
advocacy experience at CBHDA qualifies me for the HSOC category I selected. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 49 of 50



While not necessarily required, knowledge of issues relating to homelessness and/or previous 

involvement in addressing homelessness are desirable for HSOC members and will be considered by 

the selection committee prior to making its recommendations to the Board of Supervisors. Please 

summarize your experience with the issue of homelessness or with homeless clients: 

As noted above, I have knowledge of issues related to homelessness through my work at CBHDA. I 
have also reviewed the county's Countywide Plan to Address Homelessness and relevant updates on 
the Plan, so am knowledgeable in the local issues and current plans to address it. In addition, I 
previously worked for Transitions-Mental Health Association as their Finance & Operations Director. In 
that role, I worked closely with our Division Director and team who provided housing/homeless services 
and ensured there was sufficient funding to pay for staff and needed services. 

Please explain why you would like to serve on the HSOC (attach a separate sheet if necessary): 

I would like to serve on the HSOC so I can better understand, and be a part of, the 
county's process/solution to address and alleviate the impact of homelessness on the 
people in this county. I am passionate about helping the community I live in, and 
believe that being a part of HSOC will help me be a become a better advocate 
professionally and personally which will in turn help the community and those suffering 

Please note: It is possible that the selection committee may contact you to ask for additional

information if necessary to prepare its recommendations for HSOC membership to the Board of 

Supervisors. 

If appointed, are you willing to participate in the majority of meetings each year and, if necessary, in 

numerous related meetings of subcommittees? l✓I Yes D No

Should you be appointed, are you willing, if necessary for that particular body, to file a statement of 

disclosure as a public official under the standards set forth by the Fair Political Practice Commission? 

[l] Yes D No

Signed 
Raven Lopez 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

Date 
10/6/2024 

Date called/interviewed ___ Recommended for appointment? __ Yes __ No 

Appointee prefers not to have address or phone number(s) published? __ Yes __ No 

Additional Comments: 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment A

Page 50 of 50



Page 1 of 4 

Membership of the Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) as of November 2024 

Expiring seats are highlighted in green. Vacant seats are highlighted in blue. 

Seat Member Alternate Organization Term 

Elected Officials Kristen Barneich Lan George City of Arroyo Grande Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Susan Funk Charles Bourbeau City of Atascadero Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Clint Weirick Zach Zimmerman City of Grover Beach Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Zara Landrum Laurel Barton City of Morro Bay Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Steve Gregory City of Paso Robles Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Marcia Guthrie Mary Ann Reiss City of Pismo Beach Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Michelle 

Shoresman 

Erica Stewart City of San Luis Obispo Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Dawn Ortiz-Legg Kelley Abbas County of San Luis Obispo Unlimited while 

holding office 

County Government Service 

Providers 

Starlene Graber Frank Warren County Department of 

Behavioral Health 

9/12/2023-1/1/2026 

County Government Service 

Providers 

Devin Drake Linda Belch County Department of Social 

Services 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment B



Page 2 of 4 

County Government Service 

Providers* 

Allison Brandum Sarah Reinhart County Health Agency 4/19/2022-1/1/2025 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons 

Brenda Mack 1/1/2022-1/1/2025 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons 

Wendy Blacker Jason Holland SLOCO Recovery Network 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons* 

Luke Dunn 4/4/2023-1/1/2026 

Advocates Kathy 

McClenathen 

Jeff Eckles SLO County Housing Trust 

Fund 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Advocates Margaret 

Shepard-Moore 

Miriam Vargas Transitions-Mental Health 

Association 

1/23/2024-1/1/2026 

Advocates* Abby Lassen 8/13/2024-1/1/2025 

Public Safety Organizations Jeff Smith City of Pismo Beach Police 

Department 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Public Safety Organizations Rick Scott Brian Amoroso City of San Luis Obispo Police 

Department 

1/1/2023-1/1/2025 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Janna Nichols Michael Azevedo 5Cities Homeless Coalition 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Mark Lamore Transitions-Mental Health 

Association 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Wendy Lewis Mimi Rodriguez El Camino Homeless 

Organization 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment B



Page 3 of 4 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers* 

Jack Lahey Amy Nielson Community Action Partnership 

of San Luis Obispo 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers* 

Marie Bolin Jon Nibbio Family Care Network 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Affordable Housing 

Developers 

Rick Gulino Catherine 

Manning 

People’s Self-Help Housing 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Hospitals Amelia Grover Liz Snyder French Hospital 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Organizations Serving 

Homeless Veterans 

William Crewe Paul Worsham Veterans Helping Veterans 1/1/2022-1/1/2025 

Housing Authority Michelle Pedigo Housing Authority of the City 

of San Luis Obispo 

1/1/2024-1/1/2026 

County Office of Education Jessica Thomas Daniela Garcia SLO County Office of 

Education 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Victim Service Providers Susan Lamont Jennifer Adams Lumina Alliance 1/1/2022-1/1/2025 

Other Community 

Organizations 

Christy Nichols Stefanie 

Hernandez 

CenCal Health 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Behavioral Health Agencies Aurora William LAGS Recovery Centers 1/1/2023-1/1/2025 

Local School Districts Rochelle Sonza Grizzly Youth Academy 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Businesses James Dantona SLO Chamber of Commerce 8/13/2024-1/1/2025 

Faith-Based Organizations Vacant Term ends 1/1/2027 

Youth Advisory Board Vacant Term TBD 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment B



Page 4 of 4 

Per the HSOC bylaws (July 2024), one seat is reserved for a County Supervisor, and seven seats are reserved for an elected City 

Councilperson from each of the incorporated cities. 

*Five ‘at large seats’ may be held by representatives from any of the following categories: County Government Service

Providers, Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons, Advocates, Affordable Housing Developers, Businesses, Faith-Based

Organizations, Hospitals, Public Safety Organizations, Behavioral Health Agencies, Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers,

Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans, Housing Authority, County Office of Education, Local School Districts, Social Service

Providers, Victim Service Providers, and Other Community Organizations.

The HSOC may have no more than two representatives, staff or Board members from the same agency or organization. 

Agenda Item 4.1.1 - Attachment B



Agenda Item 4.1.1 – Attachment C 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Proposed Membership of the Homeless Services Oversight Council (HSOC) as of January 2025 

Seat Member Alternate Organization Term 

Elected Officials Kristen Barneich Lan George City of Arroyo Grande Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Susan Funk Charles Bourbeau City of Atascadero Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Clint Weirick Zach Zimmerman City of Grover Beach Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Zara Landrum Laurel Barton City of Morro Bay Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Steve Gregory  City of Paso Robles Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Marcia Guthrie Mary Ann Reiss City of Pismo Beach Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Michelle 

Shoresman 

Erica Stewart City of San Luis Obispo Unlimited while 

holding office 

Elected Officials Dawn Ortiz-Legg Kelley Abbas County of San Luis Obispo Unlimited while 

holding office 

County Government Service 

Providers 

Starlene Graber Frank Warren County Department of 

Behavioral Health 

9/12/2023-1/1/2026 

County Government Service 

Providers 

Devin Drake Linda Belch County Department of Social 

Services 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons 

Brenda Mack   1/1/2025-1/1/2028 



Agenda Item 4.1.1 – Attachment C 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons 

Wendy Blacker Jason Holland SLOCO Recovery Network 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Currently or Formerly 

Homeless Persons* 

Luke Dunn   4/4/2023-1/1/2026 

Advocates Kathy 

McClenathen 

Jeff Eckles SLO County Housing Trust 

Fund 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Advocates Margaret 

Shepard-Moore 

Miriam Vargas Transitions-Mental Health 

Association 

1/23/2024-1/1/2026 

Advocates* Abby Lassen   1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Advocates* Allison Brandum Daphne Boatright  1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Public Safety Organizations Jeff Smith  City of Pismo Beach Police 

Department 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Public Safety Organizations Rick Scott Brian Amoroso City of San Luis Obispo Police 

Department 

1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Janna Nichols Michael Azevedo 5Cities Homeless Coalition 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Mark Lamore  Transitions-Mental Health 

Association 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers 

Wendy Lewis Mimi Rodriguez El Camino Homeless 

Organization 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers* 

Jack Lahey Amy Nielson Community Action Partnership 

of San Luis Obispo 

1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Nonprofit Homeless 

Assistance Providers* 

Marie Bolin Jon Nibbio Family Care Network 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 



Agenda Item 4.1.1 – Attachment C 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Affordable Housing 

Developers 

Rick Gulino Catherine 

Manning 

People’s Self-Help Housing 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Hospitals Amelia Grover Liz Snyder French Hospital 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Organizations Serving 

Homeless Veterans 

Benjamin 

Albracht 

 SLO County Veterans 

Collaborative 

1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Housing Authority Michelle Pedigo  Housing Authority of the City 

of San Luis Obispo 

1/1/2024-1/1/2026 

County Office of Education Jessica Thomas Daniela Garcia SLO County Office of 

Education 

1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Victim Service Providers Susan Lamont Jennifer Adams Lumina Alliance 1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Other Community 

Organizations 

Christy Nichols Stefanie 

Hernandez 

CenCal Health 1/1/2024-1/1/2027 

Behavioral Health Agencies Raven Lopez  County Behavioral Health 

Directors Association of CA 

1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Local School Districts Rochelle Sonza Ariana Jimenez Grizzly Youth Academy 1/1/2023-1/1/2026 

Businesses James Dantona  SLO Chamber of Commerce 1/1/2025-1/1/2028 

Faith-Based Organizations Ilene Brill  Jewish Family Services of San 

Luis Obispo 

1/1/2025-1/1/2027 

Youth Advisory Board Vacant   Term TBD 

 

Per the HSOC bylaws (November 3, 2020), one seat is reserved for a County Supervisor, and seven seats are reserved for an 

elected City Councilperson from each of the incorporated cities. 

*Five ‘at large seats’ may be held by representatives from any of the following categories: County Government Service 

Providers, Currently or Formerly Homeless Persons, Advocates, Affordable Housing Developers, Businesses, Faith-Based 



Agenda Item 4.1.1 – Attachment C 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Organizations, Hospitals, Public Safety Organizations, Behavioral Health Agencies, Nonprofit Homeless Assistance Providers, 

Organizations Serving Homeless Veterans, Housing Authority, County Office of Education, Local School Districts, Social Service 

Providers, Victim Service Providers, and Other Community Organizations. 

The HSOC may have no more than two representatives, staff or Board members from the same agency or organization. 



Action Item 4.2.1 
 

HOMELESS SERVICES OVERSIGHT COUNCIL (HSOC) 
ACTION ITEM  

NOVEMBER 20, 2024 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER:  4.2.1 
 
ACTION ITEM: VOTE TO RECOMMEND AMENDING COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO AND 
CITY OF PISMO BEACH CY2023 PERMANENT LOCAL HOUSING ALLOCATION AS 
REQUIRED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
ACTION REQUIRED:   
Vote to recommend amending the Permanent Local Housing Allocation for both the County 
of San Luis Obispo and City of Pismo Beach CY2023 allocations as required by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 
SUMMARY NARRATIVE:   
Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA) is a state program administered by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) which provides funding to local 
governments in California for housing-related projects and programs that assist in 
addressing the unmet housing needs of their local communities.  Funding for PLHA is 
provided from moneys collected and deposited into the state’s Building Homes and Jobs 
Trust Fund.  To receive funding, local governments must prepare plans and submit plans to 
HCD showing how the funding will be used over a five-year period in compliance with PLHA 
requirements.  Funding is appropriated annually to local governments with approved plans.  
 
County of San Luis Obispo PLHA Plan 
The County of San Luis Obispo is the lead agency in the development of the PLHA Plan, which 
includes the San Luis Obispo Urban County Entitlement Area (comprised of the 
unincorporated areas and the cities of Arroyo Grande, Atascadero, Morro Bay, Paso Robles, 
and San Luis Obispo).  The cities of Pismo Beach and Grover Beach received separate PLHA 
allocations.   
 
On July 14, 2020, the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors approved the 5-year PLHA 
Plan and application to the State, defining how these funds are allocated by activity. Per the 
County’s 5-year plan; 10% is allocated to affordable rental and ownership housing, 50% is 
allocated to matching funds in the San Luis Obispo County Housing Trust Fund, 35% is 
allocated to services that assist persons experiencing or at-risk of homelessness, and 5% is 
allocated to the County for administration of the grant program. 
 
 
 
 



Action Item 4.2.1 
 

Program Changes This Year 
HCD released the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for CY2023 (Year five of the PLHA 
Plan) on October 15, 2024.  The NOFA included updated requirements for setting aside 
funding for Affordable Ownership Worker Housing (AOWH).  
 
Pursuant to the original PLHA authorizing statute, California Health and Safety Code Section 
50470(b)(2)(A), twenty percent (20%) of the moneys collected and deposited in the Building 
Homes and Jobs Trust Fund must be expended for Affordable Owner-Occupied Workforce 
Housing (AOWH).  The statute did not require PLHA grantees to allocate a percentage of their 
PLHA plans to AOWH, however HCD has an obligation to ensure that the 20% threshold for 
AOWH is met. 
 
HCD monitors compliance with this requirement by reviewing allocations adopted in 
required 5-year plans and any amendments to those plans, as well as reviewing actual 
documented expenditures. Based on these indicators, HCD has determined that at the end 
of the current 5-year period applicable to CY 2019- 2023 allocations, funds projected to be 
expended on AOWH are trailing behind the required 20 percent.  
 
To ensure that the statutory requirement for AOWH funding is met, the CY2023 PLHA NOFA 
will require all First-time applicants as well as previous grantees to amend their plans to 
include a 40% allocation to AOWH for any remaining allocations that have not yet been 
awarded. 
 
The County’s CY2023 allocation is $573,308.  Table 1 shows what the distribution of those 
funds would have looked like under the previously approved PLHA plan. 
 
Table 1 - Current CY2023 County of San Luis Obispo PLHA Allocation 

Current Allocation Percentage Amount 
Affordable housing 10%  $                          57,330.80  
Housing Trust Fund 50%  $                        286,654.00  
Homeless Services 35%  $                        200,657.80  
Admin 5%  $                          28,665.40  
TOTAL 100%  $                        573,308.00  

 
Table 2 below shows the proposed allocations that would bring the County in conformance 
with the current NOFO requirements. 
 
Table 2 - Proposed CY2023 County of San Luis Obispo PLHA Allocation 

Proposed Allocation Percentage Amount 
Ownership housing 40%  $                        229,323.20  
Housing Trust Fund 27.5%  $                        157,659.70  



Action Item 4.2.1 
 

Homeless Services 27.5%  $                        157,659.70  
Admin 5%  $                          28,665.40  
TOTAL 100%  $                        573,308.00  

 
Staff consulted with the San Luis Obispo County Housing Trust Fund which is supportive of 
the proposed allocation changes. 
 
The County released a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the estimated CY2023 
allocation on September 3, 2024, based on the current allocation percentages. Applications 
received for homeless services projects will be recommended for funding based on the 
proposed allocation change of 27.5%. There were no project applications submitted for 
AOWH, therefore a separate Request for Proposals will be released in early 2025 for AOWH 
projects. 
 
City of Pismo Beach Allocation 
 
On October 18, 2022, the County of San Luis Obispo Board of Supervisors approved the 
submittal of the PLHA application on behalf of the City of Pismo Beach. On November 4, 
2022, the City of Pismo Beach and the County entered into an agreement to delegate the 
County to administer the City’s PLHA allocation.    
 
The City of Pismo Beach’s PLHA Plan was originally modeled after the County’s PLHA plan 
that was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 14, 2020.  On May 21, 2024, the Board 
of Supervisors approved an amendment to the City of Pismo Beach’s PLHA Plan which 
changed the allocations for CY2020, CY2021, CY2022 (year’s two-to-four of the five-year plan) 
to 95% allocated to services that assist persons experiencing or at-risk of homelessness, and 
5% allocated to the County for administration of the grant program. 
 
The City of Pismo Beach CY2023 allocation is $69,268. Table 3 shows what the distribution of 
those funds would have looked like under the previously approved PLHA plan. 
 
Table 3 - Current CY2023 City of Pismo Beach PLHA Allocation 
Current Allocation Percentage Amount 
Homeless Services 95%  $                          65,804.60  
Admin 5%  $                            3,463.40  
TOTAL 100%  $                          69,268.00  

 
Table 4 below shows the proposed allocations that would bring the County in conformance 
with the current NOFO requirements. 
 
 
 



Action Item 4.2.1 
 

Table 4 -Proposed CY2023 City of Pismo Beach PLHA Allocation 
Proposed Allocation Percentage Amount 
Ownership housing 40%  $                          27,707.20  
Homeless Services 55%  $                          38,097.40  
Admin 5%  $                            3,463.40  
TOTAL 100%  $                          69,268.00  

 
Staff consulted with City of Pismo Beach staff to inform them of the HCD requirements and 
to review the proposed allocation changes. As the City delegated authority to the County for 
administration of the program, no action is required by the City. A Request for Proposals will 
be released in early 2025 to solicit project applications for CY2023 City of Pismo Beach 
Allocation. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
Approval of this item by HSOC would provide direction to staff to seek approval of a 
resolution by the County Board of Supervisors to amend both the County of San Luis 
Obispo’s and City of Pismo Beach’s CY2023 allocation that is required by HCD for submittal 
of the CY2023 PLHA applications.  
 
Once approved by HCD, the County would receive $642,576 in combined PLHA funding for 
the development of affordable ownership housing, matching funds to the San Luis Obispo 
County Housing Trust Fund, providing services to assist persons experiencing or at-risk of 
homelessness, and administration of the grant program. 
 
 
STAFF COMMENTS 
If this item is approved by the HSOC, staff will bring an item on the consent agenda of the 
County Board of Supervisors on December 17, 2024, for approval of a resolution to amend 
both the County of San Luis Obispo and City of Pismo Beach’s CY2023 PLHA allocation as 
required by HCD. 



McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act: Education

HSOC 11/20/24   

Jessica Thomas
Program Coordinator, 

Homeless & Foster Youth Services
San Luis Obispo County Office of Education 

jthomas@slocoe.org
805-782-7268

1

mailto:jthomas@slocoe.org


● McKinney-Vento definition for education
● SLO County student enrollment by 

dwelling type
● Education outcomes
● Education rights
● SLOCOE’s Education for Homeless 

Children and Youth grant
● Resources

2

Agenda



McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act

Both HUD and the U.S. Department of Education 

(ED) base their services and eligibility on the 

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, but 

each agency has their own definition of homeless.

ED ensures the educational rights and protections 

of children and youth experiencing homelessness.

3



McK-V Definition for Education

Children and youth who lack a fixed, regular, 
and adequate nighttime residence

• Fixed - stationary, permanent, and not 
subject to change. 

• Regular - used on a normal, standard, and 
consistent basis. 

• Adequate - sufficient for meeting both the 
physical and psychological needs typically 
met in home environments.

4



Homeless Definition Living 
Arrangements

Category 1 - Literal Homelessness

Category 2 - Imminent Risk of Homelessness

Category 3 - Homeless Under other Federal Statutes

Category 4 - Fleeing Domestic Violence 5



Unaccompanied Homeless Youth

• Unaccompanied homeless youth is defined 
as a child or youth who 
– meets the McKinney-Vento definition and 
– is not in the physical custody of a parent 

or legal guardian 

• There is no age limit for an unaccompanied 
homeless youth 

6



2022-23 SLO County Homeless 
Student Enrollment by Dwelling Type

• Doubled-up: Shared housing due to economic 
hardship, natural disaster or other similar 
reason [80.5%]

• Shelters [9%]

• Motels or hotels [3%]

• Unsheltered [7.5%]

Total Number of Homeless Students  3,107 

https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/



Students experiencing homelessness 
face a number of  academic challenges 

● School mobility

● Chronic absenteeism

● Learning loss 

● Lower test scores

● Lower graduation rates

● Higher rates of discipline referrals



San Luis Obispo County Data 



San Luis Obispo County Data 



San Luis Obispo County Data 



Educational Rights

Every school district and charter school must 

appoint a local homeless education liaison who 

is responsible for ensuring educational rights 

and supports for McKinney-Vento eligible 

students. 

SLO County Homeless Education Liaisons:

https://www.slocoe.org/liaisons

12



Educational Rights

Educational rights include the right to:

• Remain in the School of Origin 
• Immediate Enrollment in their district of 

residence
– Without delay, regardless of the 

family’s inability to produce required 
documentation, including 
immunization records

13



Referral to Services

The liaison must ensure that homeless 
families and homeless children and youth 
receive referrals to: 
• health care services, 
• dental services, 
• mental health & substance abuse services, 
• housing services, 
• and other appropriate services. 

14



SLOCOE’s Education for 
Homeless Children & Youth Grant
• Technical assistance and professional 

development for schools county-wide
• Direct support for SLOCOE students
• Subgrants offered to school districts
• Collaborations with partner agencies

– SAFE System of Care
• CAPSLO Family Resource Center
• The Link Family Resource Center
• CWS, Probation, Behavioral Health

15



16



17



Resources

California Homeless Education Technical 
Assistance Center:  https://www.hetac.org/

California Department of Education, 
Homeless Education:  
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/hs/

SchoolHouse Connection:  
https://schoolhouseconnection.org/

18

https://www.hetac.org/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/hs/
https://schoolhouseconnection.org/


w w w . s l o c o e . o r g
2 0 2 4 - 2 0 2 5

FAMILIES IN
TRANSITION

James J.  Brescia,  Ed.D.
County Superintendent of  Schools

3350 Education Drive
San Luis Obispo, CA 93405

(805) 543-7732
www.slocoe.org

Joe Koski,  Ed.D
Executive Director,

Educational Support Services
805-782-7267

Jessica Thomas
Homeless Education Program Coordinator

San Luis Obispo County
805-782-7268

COMMUNITY RESOURCES

Rights • Services • Resources 

San Luis Obispo Community Resource Information

FAM ILY RESOURCE CENTERS
Arroyo Grande FRC
Cambria Connection
Help Me Grow (Ages 0-5) FRC Paso Robles
Help Me Grow (Ages 0-5) FRC SLO
Los Osos Cares
Nipomo FRC
Oceano FRC
San Luis Obispo FRC
The Link FRC 

Department of Social Services (DSS)
       Arroyo Grande
      Atascadero
      Los Osos/Morro Bay
      Nipomo
      San Luis Obispo
      Paso Robles

HOUSING & HOMELESS SERVICES
*CalWORKs Housing Services Program
40 Prado Homeless Services Center
ECHO Shelters Atascadero & Paso Robles
Housing Authority (HASLO)
People’s Self-Help Housing
5Cities Homeless Coalition (5CHC) 
       - info@5chc.org
Transitions-Mental Health Association 
      Homeless Services

FA MILY/COMMUNITY RESOURCES
CAPSLO Veteran Services
Center for Family Strengthening
Parent Connection
Transitions-Mental Health Association Family 
       Support Specialists, Youth Services

COMMUNITY RESOURCES
FOOD/NUTRITION
*CalFresh: online www.benefitscal.org 
SLO Food Bank, www.slofoodbank.org
ALF Food Pantry
Loaves and Fishes Paso Robles
People’s Kitchen (San Luis Obispo)
Women, Infants, & Children (WIC)

CRISIS & INFORMATION HOTLINE
Lumina Alliance / Alianza Lumina 
      (Sexual + Intimate Partner Violence)
      24 Hour Crisis Hotline
Central Coast Hotline - text or call 24/7

MEDICAL
*Medi-Cal: online 
      www.benefitscal.org
CenCal Provider List
Community Health Center
      Atascadero
      Arroyo Grande
      Cambria
      Paso Robles
      Oceano
      Nipomo
      San Luis Obispo
      San Miguel
      Templeton
The Center (AG) free reproductive health care
The Center (SLO) free reproductive health care
Public Health Clinics
      San Luis Obispo - 
          Communicable Disease Follow Up, Vaccines
      Grover Beach -
          Communicable Disease Follow Up, Vaccines
      Paso Robles - 
          Reproductive Health Service, Vaccines 
SLO Noor Health Clinics - free healthcare 
      to uninsured and low-income adults
            Dental Clinic
            Medical and Vision Clinic

TRANSPORTATION
Ride-On Shuttle
Ride Share  SLO 511
SLO Regional Transit Authority (RTA)
SLO Transit Information, City of SLO

805-474-2105
805-927-1654
805-440-1878
805-305-4481
805-592-2701
805-540-4147

805-474-3000 ext. 1211
805-821-1025
805-466-5404

805-474-2000
805-461-6000
805-772-6405
805-931-1800
805-781-1600
805-237-3110

211
*Contact Local DSS

805-238-4664
805-461-1504
805-238-4742
805-440-2312
805-781-5570

805-545-8888

800-783-0607

*Contact Local DSS

877-814-1861

805-792-1400
805-473-6201
805-927-5292
805-238-7250
805-994-2100
805-929-3211
805-269-1500
805-467-2344
805-542-6700
805-489-4026
805-544-2478

805-781-5506

805-473-7050

805-237-3050

805-592-2240
805-439-1797

805-541-8747
805-541-2277
805-781-4472
805-541-2228

*Contact Local DSS
805-544-4004 
805-462-3663
805-543-4478
805-781-3088
805-574-1638

 
805-540-6500

805-237-0352
805-439-1994
805-543-3700
805-540-6571



YOU CAN ENROLL IN SCHOOL!

Uncertain housing
A temporary address
No permanent physical address

You are guaranteed enrollment in school
by the federal McKinney-Vento Act and

California state law if you live:
In a house or apartment with more
than one family due to loss of
housing or economic hardship
With friends or family because you
are a runaway or an unaccompanied
youth
In substandard housing (without
electricity, water,  or heat)
In a shelter (family, domestic
violence, or youth shelter or
transitional l iving program)
In a motel,  hotel,  or weekly rate
housing
In an abandoned building, in a car,
at a campground, or on the streets

Even if you have:

Proof of residency
Immunization records or other required
health records
School records
Legal guardianship papers

You can enroll in school immediately
even without the documents normally

required for enrollment, such as:

Participate fully in all  school activities
and programs for which he/she is
eligible.
Receive transportation to and from the
school of origin if  you request it .
Continue to attend the school in which
he/she was last enrolled even if  you
have moved away from that school's
attendance area.
Qualify automatically for school
nutrition programs.

Your child may:

Make sure your child gets to school on
time and ready to learn.
Stay informed of school rules,
regulations, and activities.
Contact the School District Contact for
assistance in removing barriers to your
child's education.
Attend parent/teacher conferences,
Back-to-School Nights, and other
school-related activities.

Your responsibilities are to:

WHO DO I  CALL?
School District Contacts:
For more information, please call 

the Homeless Liaison in your School District

Ashleigh Austin
805-221-8550
aaustin@aacacademy.com 

E.J. Rossi 
805-462-4200 
familiesintransition@atasusd.org

Julie Turk
805-595-7169
jturk@bsfcs.org

Liz Villalobos
805-995-3694 
lvillalobos@cayucosschool.org

Jill Southern
805-927-6121
jsouthern@coastusd.org

Stephanie Oliver
805-242-5024
soliver@mygya.com

Wendy Bruse 
805-474-3000x1221
wendy.bruse@lmusd.org

Thomas Harrington
805-769-1016
trharrington@pasoschools.org

Wendy Nielsen
805-467-3453 
wnielsen@pleasant-valley-school.org

Chris Dowler 
805-549-1218x01283 
cdowler@slcusd.org

Daniela Garcia
805-458-9747
dgarcia@slocoe.org

Angie Lemm
805-467-3216
alemm@sanmiguelschools.org

Dolores Cardinalle
805-238-0286
dcardinalle@shandonschools.org

Julie Davis
805-434-5800
jdavis@templetonusd.org

San Luis Obispo County Homeless 
Education Program Coordinator

Jessica Thomas 
805-782-7268 

jthomas@slocoe.org

Almond Acres 
Charter Academy

Atascadero Unified 
School District

Bellevue-Santa Fe 
Charter School

Cayucos Elementary
School District

Coast Unified 
School District

Grizzly ChalleNGe 
Charter School

Lucia Mar Unified 
School District

Paso Robles Joint 
Unified School District

Pleasant Valley 
Joint Union Elementary 
School District

San Luis Coastal 
Unified School District

San Luis Obispo
Court & Community 
School

San Miguel Joint 
Union School District

Shandon Joint 
Unified School District

Templeton Unified 
School District

mailto:jturk@bsfcs.org
mailto:dgarcia@slocoe.org
mailto:alemm@sanmiguelschools.org


w w w . s l o c o e . o r g
2 0 2 4 - 2 0 2 5

RECURSOS DE LA COMUNIDAD
Información de Recursos de la Comunidad 
      de San Luis Obispo
REC URSOS DE LA FAMILIA
Arroyo Grande FRC
Conexión Cambria
Ayúdame a crecer (Edades 0-5) FRC Paso Robles
Ayúdame a crecer (Edades 0-5) FRC SLO
Los Osos Cares
Nipomo FRC
Oceano FRC
San Luis Obispo FRC
The Link FRC

Departmento de Servicios Sociales (DSS)
       Arroyo Grande
      Atascadero
      Los Osos/Morro Bay
      Nipomo
      San Luis Obispo
      Paso Robles

SERVI CIOS DE VIVIENDA Y PERSONAS SIN HOGAR
*CalWORKs Programa de servicios 
       de vivienda
40 Prado Centro de servicios para 
      personas sin hogar
Refugio ECHO de Atascadero y Paso Robles
Autoridad de Vivienda (HASLO)
Vivienda de Auto-ayuda de la Gente
Coalición de personas sin hogar de 5Cities 
       - info@5chc.org
Transiciones-Asociación de salud mental 
      Servicios para personas sin hogar

FA MILY/COMMUNITY RESOURCES
CAPSLO Servicios para Veteranos
Centro para el Fortalecimiento Familiar
Conexión de Padres
Transiciones-Especialista en apoyo familiar 
      de la Asociación de Salud Mental, 
      Servicios para Jóvenes

RECURSOS DE LA COMUNIDAD
ALIME NTOS/NUTRICIÓN
*CalFresh: en linea 
      www.benefitscal.org 
SLO Banco de Comida, www.slofoodbank.org
Despensa de alimentos ALF
Panes y Pescados Paso Robles
Cocina de la Gente de San Luis Obispo
Mujeres, Infantes, y Niños (WIC)

CRISIS & INFORMATION HOTLINE
Alianza Lumina 
      (Violencia sexual + de pareja íntima)
      Línea directa de crisis las 24 horas
Línea directa de la costa central - 
      envía un mensaje de texto o llama

MEDICAL
*Medi-Cal: en linea 
      www.benefitscal.org
Lista de Proveedores de CenCal
Centro de Salud de la Comunidad
      Atascadero
      Arroyo Grande
      Cambria
      Paso Robles
      Oceano
      Nipomo
      San Luis Obispo
      San Miguel
      Templeton
El Centro (AG) de atención gratuita 
      en salud reproductiva
El Centro (SLO) de atención gratuita 
      en salud reproductiva
Clínicas de salud pública
      San Luis Obispo -  Seguimiento de
           Enfermedades Transmisibles, Vacunas
      Grover Beach - Seguimiento de
           Enfermedades Transmisibles, Vacunas
      Paso Robles - 
          Servicio de Salud Reproductiva, Vacunas 
Clínicas de salud SLO Noor - atención médica 
          para adultos sin seguro y de bajos ingresos
            Clínica Dental
            Clínica Médica y de Visión

TRA NSPORTACIÓN
Minibús Ride-On
Compartir Viajes 511
Transito de la Costa Central (RTA)
Información de tránsito de SLO, ciudad de SLO

211

*Póngase en contacto 
con el DSS local

805-544-4004 

805-462-3663
805-543-4478
805-781-3088
805-574-1638

 
805-540-6500

805-237-0352
805-439-1994
805-543-3700
805-540-6571

FAMILIAS EN
TRANSICIÓN

James J.  Brescia,  Ed.D.
Superintendente de Escuelas del  Condado

3350 Education Drive
San Luis Obispo, CA 93405

(805) 543-7732
www.slocoe.org

Joe Koski,  Ed.D
Director Ejecutivo,

Servicios de Apoyo Educativo
805-782-7267

Jessica Thomas
Coordinadora de Desamparados

Condado de San Luis Obispo
805-782-7268

Derechos • Servicios • Recursos 

805-474-2105
805-927-1654
805-440-1878
805-305-4481
805-592-2701
805-540-4147

805-474-3000 ext. 1211
805-821-1025
805-466-5404

805-474-2000
805-461-6000
805-772-6405
805-931-1800
805-781-1600
805-237-3110

*Póngase en contacto 
con el DSS local
805-238-4664
805-461-1504
805-238-4742
805-440-2312
805-781-5570

805-545-8888

*Póngase en contacto 
con el DSS local

877-814-1861

805-792-1400
805-473-6201
805-927-5292
805-238-7250
805-994-2100
805-929-3211
805-269-1500
805-467-2344
805-542-6700
805-489-4026

805-544-2478

805-781-5506

805-473-7050

805-237-3050

805-592-2240
805-439-1797

805-541-8747
805-541-2277
805-781-4472
805-541-2228

800-783-0607



¡USTED PUEDE INSCRIBIRSE EN LA ESCUELA!

Su situación de vivienda es insegura
Tiene una dirección temporal
No tiene una dirección física
permanente

La ley federal McKinney-Vento y las leyes
del estado de California le garantizan la

inscripción en la escuela si vives:
En una casa o departamento con
más de una familia debido a la
pérdida de su vivienda o a
dificultades económicas
Con amigos o familiares porque
huiste de tu hogar o eres un menor
no acompañado
En una vivienda precaria (sin
electricidad, agua o calefacción)
En un refugio (para familias, víctimas
de violencia domestica o jóvenes, o
un programa de vivienda temporal)
En un motel,  hotel o vivienda que se
paga semanalmente
En un edificio abandonado,
automóvil,  campamento o en la calle

Incluso si:

Prueba de residencia
Registros de vacunación y otros
registros médicos
Registros escolares
Papeles de guardian legal

Puede inscribirse en la escuela de
inmediato incluso sin los documentos 

que normalmente se piden para 
la inscripción, como:

Participar plenamente en todas las
actividades y programas escolares
para los que sea eligible.
Recibir transporte de ida y vuelta a su
escuela de origen si lo solicita.
Seguir asistiendo a la escuela en la
que estuvo inscrito por última vez,
incluso si se mudó fuera de la zona de
asistencia de esa escuela.
Califica automáticamente para los
programas de nutrición escolar.

Su hijo puede:

Asegurarse de que su hijo asista a la
escuela a tiempo y listo para aprender.
Mantenerse informado de las reglas,
regulaciones y actividades de la escuela.
Contactar a la persona indicada en ayudar
a las personas sin hogar para obtener
ayuda para eliminar las barreras a la
educación de su hijo.
Asistir a reuniones entre padres y maestros,
las noches de regreso a la escuela y otras
actividades relacionadas con la escuela.

Es su responsabilidad:

¿A QUIÉN DEBO LLAMAR?
Contactos de los Distritos Escolares:

Para más información, comuníquese con el Coordinador/a de
Desamparados de su Distrito Escolar

Ashleigh Austin
805-221-8550
aaustin@aacacademy.com 

E.J. Rossi 
805-462-4200 
familiesintransition@atasusd.org

Julie Turk
805-595-7169
jturk@bsfcs.org

Liz Villalobos
805-995-3694 
lvillalobos@cayucosschool.org

Jill Southern
805-927-6121
jsouthern@coastusd.org

Stephanie Oliver
805-242-5024
soliver@mygya.com

Wendy Bruse 
805-474-3000x1221
wendy.bruse@lmusd.org

Thomas Harrington
805-769-1016
trharrington@pasoschools.org

Wendy Nielsen
805-467-3453 
wnielsen@pleasant-valley-school.org

Chris Dowler 
805-549-1218x01283 
cdowler@slcusd.org

Daniela Garcia
805-458-9747
dgarcia@slocoe.org

Angie Lemm
805-467-3216
alemm@sanmiguelschools.org

Dolores Cardinalle
805-238-0286
dcardinalle@shandonschools.org

Julie Davis
805-434-5800
jdavis@templetonusd.org

Coordinadora de Desamparados del 
Condado de San Luis Obispo

Jessica Thomas 
805-782-7268 

jthomas@slocoe.org

Almond Acres 
Charter Academy

Atascadero Unified 
School District

Bellevue-Santa Fe 
Charter School

Cayucos Elementary
School District

Coast Unified 
School District

Grizzly ChalleNGe 
Charter School

Lucia Mar Unified 
School District

Paso Robles Joint 
Unified School District

Pleasant Valley 
Joint Union Elementary 
School District

San Luis Coastal 
Unified School District

San Luis Obispo
Court & Community 
School

San Miguel Joint 
Union School District

Shandon Joint 
Unified School District

Templeton Unified 
School District

mailto:jturk@bsfcs.org
mailto:dgarcia@slocoe.org
mailto:alemm@sanmiguelschools.org

	FULL-2024-11-20-Agenda
	HOMELESS SERVICES OVERSIGHT COUNCIL (HSOC) Meeting Agenda

	FULL-2024-09-18-Minutes
	4_1_1 - Action Item HSOC Membership
	4_1_1A - All Applications Received
	K Klein_Attachment
	NOM-20241011-AgendaPacket.pdf
	A Lassen__Redacted
	A Brandum__Redacted
	A William__Redacted
	W Crewe_Redacted
	B Mack__Redacted
	J Dantona___Redacted
	R Scott_Redacted
	S Lamont_Redacted
	A Kokonas_Redacted
	B Albracht_Redacted
	C Parker-Kennedy_Redacted
	D Boatright__Redacted
	H Azeem__Redacted
	I Brill___Redacted
	I Avila-Quiros_Redacted
	J Valentine___Redacted
	J Carr_Redacted
	K Klein_Redacted
	L White_Redacted
	N Crawford__Redacted
	N Bennett__Redacted
	R Lopez__Redacted


	4_1_1B - HSOC Membership November 2024
	4_1_1C - Proposed Membership of HSOC January 2025
	4_2_1 - Action Item Recommendation to Amend PLHA for SLO County and City of Pismo Beach CY2023
	4_3_1A-HSOC McKinney-Vento Education - 11.20.24
	4_3_1B-2024 Families in Transition English FINAL 10.21.24
	4_3_1C-2024 Families in Transition Spanish FINAL 10.21.2024



